Public Document Pack

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019-20

Planning Committee
Wednesday, 22 January 2020 at 3.30 pm,
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington
Membership
Chair: Councillor Eamonn Higgins
Vice-Chair: Councillor Dave Parkins
Councillors Judith Addison, Jean Battle MBE, Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves, Diane Fielding,
Melissa Fisher, Abdul Khan, Patrick McGinley, Kath Pratt, Paddy Short and Kate Walsh

AGENDA
1.

Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations

2.

Minutes of the Last Meeting (Pages 3 - 4)
To submit the minutes of the Planning Committee held on the 25th November 2019 for
approval as a correct record.
Recommended

3.

- That the Minutes be received and approved as a
correct record.

Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination
(Pages 5 - 16)
3A. 11/19/0358 – Village Inn Water Street, Great Harwood
Major Full: conversion of former public house to 10no apartments (I bed) including

Telephone Enquiries: , Democratic Services (01254) 380136
Email: memberservices@hyndburnbc.gov.uk
Published on Tuesday, 14 January 2020

Page 1 of 2

demolition of rear annex and changes to windows and insertion of veluxes in roof.
3B. 11/19/0433 – 10 Mill Gardens, Great Harwood
The application is being presented to Planning Committee because the works are being
undertaken for an elected member (Councillor).
Recommended

4.

- That the planning applications be determined as set
out in the report.

Update Sheet (Pages 17 - 22)

Page 2 of 2

Agenda Item 2.
PLANNING COMMITTEE

Monday, 25th November, 2019
Present:

Councillor Eamonn Higgins (in the Chair), Councillors Dave Parkins (Vice
Chair), Judith Addison, Jean Battle MBE, Stephen Button, Stewart Eaves,
Abdul Khan, Patrick McGinley, Miles Parkinson OBE and
Bernadette Parkinson

Apologies:

Councillors Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher and Kate Walsh

Absent:

Councillors Kathleen Pratt and Paddy Short

140

Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillors Diane Fielding, Melissa Fisher and
Kate Walsh.
Councillors Miles Parkinson and Bernadette Parkinson acted as substitute representatives
for Councillors Melissa Fisher and Diane Fielding.
There were no declarations of interest and no reported dispensations.

141

Minutes of the Last Meeting
The minutes of the last Planning Committee held on the 9th October 2019, were submitted
for approval as a correct record.
Resolved – That the minutes be received and approved as a correct record.

142

Town and Country Planning Act 1990- Planning Applications for Determination
The Chief Planning and Transportation Officer submitted a report setting out a further
recommended action on the following application.
11/19/0141: Land off Miller Fold, Accrington
Major Full: Residential development to create 46no dwellings (16 x 2 bed and 30 x 3 bed 2
Storey buildings)
This application was considered at the Planning Meeting on the 9th October 2019 and the
following recommendation was resolved:
‘Recommend for approval subject to a legal agreement securing the following:
- £5760 bin provision
- £15000 Public open space
- £30000 Ecology,
and the conditions which were set out in the full report’.
On the advice of the Chief Planning and Transportation Officer the Committee was
requested to consider an addition to the above recommendation as follows:

1

Page 3

‘Recommend for approval subject to a legal agreement securing the following:
20% affordable housing to be provided in accordance with the definition of affordable
housing in the National Planning Policy Framework’
Resolved –

(1) That the additional recommendation relating to affordable
housing, as outlined above, be approved; and
(2) That powers be delegated to the Chief Planning and
Transportation Officer to finalise the wording of the conditions
in line with those set out in the 9th October Planning Committee
Supplemental Agenda.

Signed:……………………………………………
Date: …………….…………………………………………
Chair of the meeting
At which the minutes were confirmed

2

Page 4

Agenda Item 3.
Hyndburn Borough Council
Report For:

Planning Committee

Application Number:

11/19/0358

Full Application:

Major Full: conversion of former public house to 10no
apartments (I bed) including demolition of rear annex and
changes to windows and insertion of veluxes in roof.

Address:

Village Inn Water Street Great Harwood

Date Registered:

21.10.19

Determination by:

30.01.20 (extension agreed)

Applicant:

M Ashraf

Agent:

LMP Limited

HUMAN RIGHTS
The relevant provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and the European Convention on
Human Rights have been taken into account in the preparation of this report, particularly the
implications arising from the following rights:Article 8
The right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence.
Article 1 of Protocol 1
The right of peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property.
Site and Proposal
The site is located on the junction of Lime Street and Water Street in Great Harwood and is
currently not operating, but was last operated as a public house (in 2011). There is
residential development surrounding the site with empty land opposite, which sits next to the
new health centre serving Great Harwood.
The building has a hipped roof which is a strong roof line characteristic of surrounding area
and has what appears to be original windows as first floor front elevation.
Summary of Consultations
Public consultation: 2 letters of objection have been received and the following matters
raised:

Page 5






Parking: the Highways Authority have not objected but they haven’t confirmed when
they visited and saw the streets clear. The streets are already full and this will mean
20 more cars.
Who will live in the apartments and will they be maintained. Will the residents be
prison releases etc.
There are already vacant properties in Great Harwood why do we need more flats?

LCC Highways: No objections to the proposals and of the opinion that the proposed
development should have a negligible impact on highway safety and highway capacity in the
immediate vicinity of the site.
Condition required: Construction Management Plan
HBC Environmental Health: No objection subject to conditions relating to:




Site preparation and construction phase
Noise assessment and mitigation
Mechanical ventilation

Lancashire Police: No objection but a condition required for security during construction
Lancashire Fire Service: No comments received
HBC Ecology Officer: No objections, conditions relating to nesting boxes and birds and
bats are required.
United Utilities: No objection received, advice is provided.
Electricity Northwest: No comments received within 21 day statutory time period.
Coal Authority: The site is within a high risk area, although as this is a change of use only a
report is not required at this stage. Advice is provided.
HBC Parks: Offsite contribution towards open space in Hyndburn of £4689
Relevant Planning History
None
Relevant Policies
Hyndburn Core Strategy
 Policy BD1
The Balanced Development Strategy
 Policy H1
Housing Provision
 Policy HC2
Open space
 Policy HC4
Community Benefits/Planning Obligations

Page 6






Policy Env4
Policy Env6
Policy Env7
Policy GH1

Sustainable Development and Climate Change
High Quality Design
Environmental Amenity
Housing in Great Harwood

Development Management Development Plan Document












Policy DM8 Public Houses
Policy DM10 New Residential Development
Policy DM11 Open Space Provision in New Residential Development
Policy DM16 Housing Standards
Policy DM18 Protection and Enhancement of the Natural Environment
Policy Dm19 Protected Species
Policy DM20 Flood risk management and Water Resources
Policy DM26 Design Quality and Materials
Policy DM29 Environmental Amenity
Policy DM31 Waste Management in all Developments
Policy DM32 Sustainable Transport, Traffic and Highway Safety

Material considerations
 National Planning Policy Framework
 National planning Policy Guidance
 Hyndburn Borough Council Car Parking and Access Standards (2010)
 Householder Design Guide (SPD) 2009
 GN1 Open Space in new residential development
 GN3 Materials and Colour
 GN8 Parking and Access Standards
Principle of the development
Hyndburn’s Core Strategy (CS) provides the overriding policy for the Borough. Policy BD1 of
the CS discusses the principles which underpin the Local Development Framework for
Hyndburn. It is stated in point a that the existing settlement pattern and hierarchy of centres
will be maintained and supported by concentrating development within the urban areas and
in centres of a scale and type appropriate to their role. Accrington and its townships will
accommodate the majority of new development. Modest growth is proposed in Great
Harwood, and Rishton can develop in a manner consistent with its size and function. This
site is located within the urban area of Great Harwood and as such the principle of
development is supported and would be considered to comply with Policy BD1 in this regard.
Policy H1 of the CS allows apartment development within 250m of the centre of Great
Harwood. As such the principle of the development is also acceptable in this regard.
CS Policy HC2 and DMDPD Policy DM 8 provide detail of how the loss of community assets,
in this case a public house, can be accepted in terms of policy. In this case the applicant has
demonstrated that the detail in Policy DM8 has been met in this regard.

Page 7

The principle of the development is therefore considered acceptable by Officers.
Traffic and Highway Safety
CS Policy Env7 and Development Management Development Plan Document (DMDPD)
Policy DM32 are both relevant in terms of traffic and highway safety, along with the
provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). Both expect development to
be built to certain standards to ensure traffic and highway safety.
The development is for the creation of 10no apartments, which would all be 1bed. There is
no parking provided with the development, just on street parking. Objections have been
made to the development from 2no separate parties in regard to parking.
The Highways Authority have considered the proposal and have commented that when they
visited the site the street parking was not at full capacity (12.11.19 at 10.09am). they have
reviewed the Lancashire County Council’s five year data base for Personal Injury Accident
(PIA). The data base indicates that there has been no incidents within the vicinity of the site.
They also note that the original usage created more traffic than the proposed use.
The DMDPD guidance note requires maximum 1 space per 1 bedroom unit to be available
for parking. However as this is considered a sustainable location, the lack of parking is
considered acceptable to both the Highways Authority and HBC Officers.
Officers consider that the proposal is in line with the relevant planning policy and as there is
no objection received from the Highways Authority, as statutory consultee, do not consider
that this is a suitable reason to refuse the planning application.
Design and appearance
CS Policy Env6 and DMDPD Policies DM10 and DM26, along with the provisions of the
NPPF all require development to be of high quality design.
When the pre application advice was submitted, the applicant proposed changes to the first
floor windows (which are original) and the roof line. This was not considered acceptable by
Officers in terms of design and as a result of advice given at that stage, the applicant has
kept the roof line and agreed to keep the first floor windows. He has added some velux
windows in the existing roof and will also remove the rear lean to. All these changes are
considered acceptable. Officers are pleased that the windows at first floor will be retained
and consider this will lead to a higher quality development than was originally proposed. A
condition is included to ensure that the original windows are kept and not replaced.
As there would be no further external changes, the development is considered acceptable in
terms of visual amenity.

Page 8

DMDPD Policy DM16 has specific standards in terms of room sizes, again the applicant has
responded to pre application advice and the development is now in line with these
requirements. Officers therefore consider the development is acceptable in this regard.
Open Space Provision
CS Policy HC2 and DMDPD Policy DM11 both require open space to be provided within
development of 10 units or more. As there is no space within the development to provide
this, the applicant has approved to make an off-site contribution of £4689. This will be
secured through a s106 agreement between the applicant and the Council.
Officers consider that subject to the s106 being signed the development is therefore
acceptable in this regard.
Residential Amenity
CS Policy Env 7 Environmental Amenity, DMDPD Policy DM29 Environmental Amenity and
the Council’s Householder Design Guide Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPD) all aim to
protect other uses adjacent to development. There are specifically distances provided of
21m between habitable room windows and 12 m between gable and habitable room
windows which should be maintained. This will prevent overlooking. In this case the area is a
densely built up terraced areas where these distances on average are not met. The reposed
apartments would not be any closer to nearby properties in terms of overlooking than other
houses in that area and as such although not in strict compliance with the policy, due to the
layout of the surrounding streets it is not considered that this is a suitable reason to refuse
the application.
The Council’s Environmental Health Officer has considered the proposal and has made no
objection subject to conditions noted in the consultation section of the report. The conditions
have been agreed with the agent.
Therefore with the inclusion of the noted conditions, Officers consider the development is
acceptable in this regard.
Other matters:
Lancashire Constabulary: Requested that information is included in relation to security
during construction, an advice note is added as an informative.
Ecology: Bat and bird boxes have been requested to ensure there is a biodiversity net gain
on the site after development in accordance with DMDPD Policy DM18 and also advice is
provided in terms of bats and birds during construction.
Coal Authority: The site is within a high risk area, although as this is a change of use and not
for new development, an advice note is added as an informative.

Page 9

Objections have also been received in relation to the people who will live in the apartments
and also whether the apartments are needed. The Council has a policy which allows
apartment development in this location, and as such this proposal is considered to be in line
with that policy and as such acceptable in that regard. In relation to the comments relating to
inhabitants of the development. This is not a planning matter as this application is for
residential development, not for institutional development such as the type which is referred
to in the objector’s letter.
Recommendation
That members APPROVE the application subject to the signing of a s106 relating to open
space (£4689) and bin provision (£to be confirmed) and the conditions listed below.
Conditions
1. The development hereby approved shall be commenced before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains the right to review
unimplemented permissions and to comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990.
2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and
documents:
Application form received 22nd October 2019
Existing floor Plans and Elevations 18/07/E01 received 22nd October 2019
Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations 18/07/P01 Rev A received 22nd October 2019
Location Plan and Site Layout 18/071/L01 received 22nd Oct 2019.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to enable Hyndburn Borough Council
adequately control the development and to minimise its impact on the amenities of
the local area and to conform with Policies Env6 & Env7 of the Hyndburn Core
Strategy.
3. Construction works & associated deliveries shall be restricted to between 0800 and
1800hrs Monday to Friday and 0800 and 1300 on Saturdays and shall not take place
on Sundays and bank holidays. All works shall be undertaken in accordance with
BS5228:2009.
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with Core Strategy Policy
Env7, Development Management Development Plan Document Policy DM29 and the
provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.
4. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the

Page 10

Local Planning Authority. The approved statement shall be adhered to throughout
the construction period. It shall provide for:
i)
ii)
iii)

The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
The loading and unloading of plant and materials
The storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

iv)

The erection and maintenance of security hoarding

v)

Wheel washing facilities

vi)

Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction

vii)

A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works

viii)

Details of working hours

ix)

Routing of delivery vehicles to/from site

Reason: In the interest of traffic and highway safety in accordance with Policy Env7
of the Hyndburn Core Strategy and Policy DM29 of the Development Management
Development Plan Document.
5. Prior to the commencement of development a noise impact assessment shall be
carried out and submitted to the Local Planning authority for approval in writing.
The assessment shall be carried out for the most sensitive hours and the
methodology for the assessment be submitted in writing to the Environmental
Protection unit for agreement prior to any assessment taking place. The assessment
shall show that the completed development shall meet the following standards, and
set out any mitigation measures required. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling all
the required mitigation measures shall be incorporated into the development and
retained thereafter.
LAeq 50-55 dB 16 hours – gardens and outside living areas (for example balconies)
LAeq 35 dB 16 hours – indoors daytime
LAeq 30 dB 8 hours – indoors night-time (23.00-07.00)
LAFmax 45 dB 8 hours – indoors night-time (23.00-07.00)
LAFmax 45 dB 4 hours – indoors evening (19.00-23.00)*
* The evening standard LAFmax will only apply were the existing evening LAFmax
significantly exceeds the LAeq and the maximum levels reached are regular in
occurrence, for example several times per hour
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with the provisions of
Core Strategy Policy Env7 and Development Management Development Plan
Document Policy DM29.
6. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a test report for any
sound insulation and noise reduction measures installed in the development, from an

Page 11

accredited test engineer (in accordance with the requirements of BS 8233:2014),
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
approved measures installed shall then be maintained for the duration of the
development
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with the provisions of
Env7 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy and Development Management Development
Plan Document DM29.
7. Measures shall be in place to prevent nuisance being caused to residents from noise,
dust, fumes and or vibration arising from the building works prior to the
commencement of development works, and shall be retained for the duration of the
development. There shall be no burning off on site of construction waste.
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with the provisions of
Core Strategy Policy Env7 and Development Management Development Plan
Document Policy DM29.
8. Prior to its installation in the development hereby approved, details and specification
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing, for the
location and design of mechanical ventilation. The mechanical ventilation shall then
be installed and maintained in accordance with the scheme and programme for the
duration of the development.
Reason: In the interest of residential amenity in accordance with the provisions of
Core Strategy Policy Env7 and Development Management Development Plan
Document Policy DM29

9. 3no building integrated Swift boxes, 1no building integrated Sparrow box, and 1no
building integrated bat box shall be installed into the development during construction
in accordance with a scheme and programme prior submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The boxes shall be retained thereafter.
Reason: To protect and enhance the natural environment in accordance with Policy
DM 18 of the Development Management Development Plan Document.
10. Prior to the commencement of development a scheme and programme for the
retention of windows at first floor shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be built in accordance with the
approved scheme and the windows retained thereafter.
Reason: In the interest of a high quality design for the development in accordance
with Core Strategy Policy Env6, Development Management Development Plan
Document Policy DM 10 and DM26 and the provisions of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Page 12

Hyndburn Borough Council – Committee Report
Application Ref:

11/19/0433

Application Address:

10 Mill Gardens, Great Harwood, BB6 7FN

Householder Application: Conversion of integral garage to provide living accommodation
– bedroom en-suite wet room and kitchen
Date Registered:

19th December 2019

Date for Decision:

10th February 2020

Date Report Written:

13th January 2020

Scheme of Delegation:

The application is being presented to Planning Committee
because the works are being undertaken for an elected
member (Councillor).

HUMAN RIGHTS
The relevant provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and the European Convention on
Human Rights have been taken into account in the preparation of this report, particularly the
implications arising from the following rights:Article 8
The right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence.
Article 1 of Protocol 1
The right of peaceful enjoyment of possessions and protection of property.
Site and Proposal
The application site consists of a modern 3 storey dwelling located on Mill Gardens within
the urban boundary of Great Harwood. The dwelling has an integral garage on the ground
floor, as is typical for the row. A driveway leads up to the property.
Planning permission is sought for the conversion of the integral garage to provide living
accommodation for a resident with special care needs. It would include an en-suite bedroom
and a kitchen. External changes would consist of the replacement of the garage door with a
window.
Consultations
Public consultation: Letters sent to surrounding properties, no comments received.
LCC Highways: Loss of parking would cause concern

Page 13

Environmental Health: No object but include caveat regarding contaminated land
Relevant Planning History
11/11/0390:

Major Full: Erection of 12 no dwellings (Resubmission of 11/11/0237) –
Approved w/conditions 12/10/2011.

Relevant Policies
National Planning Policy Framework
Development Management DPD DM10, DM29
Hyndburn Core Strategy Policies Env6, Env7
Householder Design Guide SPD
Hyndburn Borough Council Car Parking and Access Standards
Observations
The key issues for consideration in this application are the design and external appearance
of the physical alterations and impact on the highway network.
Policy Env6 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy seeks to ensure that the character and quality of
Hyndburn’s urban and rural environments will be conserved and enhanced through high
quality design.
All external finishes to be used will match the existing property and as such, the physical
alterations do not raise any concerns from a design perspective.
Policy Env7 of the Hyndburn Core Strategy states that Proposals for new development will
be permitted only if it is demonstrated that the material impacts arising by reason of traffic,
visual impact, noise, dust, emissions, pollution, odour, over-looking or loss of light, or other
nuisances will nuisances will not give rise to unacceptable adverse impacts or loss of local
amenity and can be properly controlled in accordance with best practice and recognised
standards. Policy DM29 of the Development Management DPD has similar aims.
LCC Highways have been consulted on the application and offer the following comments:
I have viewed the plans and the highway related documents. I have the following comments
to make:
Mill Gardens (X3311) is a privately maintained, urban, cul-de-sac.
The proposal will lead to the loss of a parking space.
There has been no mention of number of bedrooms in this property.

Page 14

The parking and access standards adopted by Hyndburn Borough Council states that four
bedroom residential development should provide 3 parking spaces.
Parking in the turning head is not acceptable parking and would be a highway safety
concern.
A parking plan should be provided showing the proposed parking spaces required for this
size of property.
The applicant has confirmed that the proposal would result in the property having 4
bedrooms, therefore there is a requirement for 3 parking spaces. The applicant also made
me aware that there would only be one driver residing at the property. The Council must
however form decisions based on the needs of future occupiers too.
Although it is true that the proposal would result in the loss of a parking space, there would
still be a space for parking on the driveway, the street and also an off street parking area for
the residents of Mill Gardens provided adjacent to the junction with Arthur Street. Officers
are therefore satisfied that adequate parking can be provided.
Conclusion
The application has been assessed against the relevant policies contained within the
Hyndburn Core Strategy and the Development Management DPD. The proposal is needed
for a resident with special care needs and this has been significant weight. Officers are
satisfied that the proposal would not result in any detrimental design or amenity issues and
are satisfied that sufficient parking can be provided. The application is therefore
recommended for approval.
Recommendation
Approve with conditions
Conditions

1.

The development hereby approved shall be commenced before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains the right to review
unimplemented permissions and to comply with Section 91 (as amended) of the
Town & Country Planning Act 1990.

2.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following documents:
(a)

The planning application forms, location plan and additional information
received by Hyndburn Borough Council on 16th December 2019

Page 15

(b)

Submitted drawings received by Hyndburn Borough Council on 16th
December 2019

Reason: for the avoidance of doubt and to enable Hyndburn Borough Council to
adequately control the development and to minimise its impact on the amenities of
the local area and to conform with Policies Env6 & Env7 of the Hyndburn Core
Strategy.

Informatives
The site has been previously occupied by industrial premises, therefore, should operatives
discover any adverse ground conditions during earth works and suspect it to be
contaminated, then they must report this to Environmental Health on 01254 380623
13a, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18

Page 16

Agenda Item 4.
Update Sheet
Planning Committee 22nd Jan 2020
11/19/0358 Major full: Conversion of former public house to 10 no apartments (1bed) including
demolition of rear annex and changes to windows and insertion of veluxes in roof
Comments have been received from Cllr McGinley yesterday which are available below as part of the
update to the Planning Committee Report. Please note the attached photographs of the Village Inn
also provided.
Comments were as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

The Village Inn is a fairly smart looking building
Ten single one bed apartments suggest occupancy by unemployed, problem people etc
Do you feel this is keeping with the area- I do not
No parking on Maple street is possible, although the road on Water Street is clear at the
point of this building
I have checked several times and the road is mostly clear- see photographs attached
Many people in such flats cannot afford transport- so it is not likely to be even ten cars
there, let alone 20
Will there be a resident supervisor in one of the flats? I suggest strong control may be
necessary
Should there have been 5 or 6 larger flats for couples
I saw somewhere that he applicant was a Cllr- is this the case?

Some of these matters are addressed in the report but as these are noted above I will deal with
them below:
Officers agree the Village inn is a ‘smart’ building and have worked through the pre application
process and though the application consideration to ensure its key features are retained- the roof is
no longer being affected as was initially proposed and the windows will be retained, for example.
The application is for 10no residential flats, there is no control over the occupancy, nor nothing to
suggest in the application that they will be occupied by ‘unemployed problem people’, they will be
available for purchase or rent on the open market. This means anybody can live in them as there are
no restrictions, being a residential use.
Coupled with this there is no control over the number of cars each occupant (s) will have, although
as the location is central in a sustainable location car ownership is not as important as it would be in
say a rural area. As the flats are for C3 use, there is no requirement for a live in supervisor. The
applicant did reduce the number of flats from the pre application advice submission to 10, and the
new layout now meets with the requirements in terms of flat sizes as a result. Officers are satisfied
with this in terms of the relevant planning policy. As the flats meet these requirements, there is no
policy basis to require larger flats than this.

Page 17

Officers and LCC Highways agree with the assertion that there are no parking issues in the
surrounding streets and that roads have been clear when they have visited the site.
Finally Officers also agree that the use of flats in this area is acceptable, this is for residential use in a
residential area and in line with the policy which controls the locations of flats in Hyndburn.
The agent has confirmed the applicant is not a Councillor.
The photographs provided are below:

Page 18

Page 19

11/19/0433 Householder: Conversion of integral single garage to provide living accommodation –
bedroom, ensuite wet room and kitchen
Comments have been received from Cllr McGinley yesterday which are available below as part of the
update to the Planning Committee Report. Please note the attached photographs of the Mill
Gardens also provided.
1. I know the occupants are LCC and HBC CLLR JENNY MOLYNEUX and her ex-Cllr husband Gareth;
2. My comments have nothing to do with any politics - so no declaration of interest needed;
3. My views concern only the facts and principles involved;
4. The issue centres around the parking issue. A 4 - bedroom facility requires 3 car-parking spots;
5. Planning should NOT be based upon the fact the family have only one car;
6. The general rules which apply to all is that there must be more car parking allocated;
7. If they sell the property for a profit, any new family with three or more cars will have to park on
the road;
8. PLEASE LOOK AT PHOTOS attached which highlight future problems;
9. I spoke to neighbours who are not happy with the proposals;
10. Parking on the road here always creates problems, I assure you;
11. Neighbours suggested Councillors should not receive any preferential treatment;
12. Herein lies the whole essence of the need to REFUSE THIS APPLICATION. Should we approve it on
this occasion, what do we do with every future Planning Application from non-Cllrs in the whole
Borough? Do we refuse their plans as they do not comply with the requirements for extra carparking spaces. That would be truly disgraceful, showing nepotism and/or favouritism. Or do we set
a precedent with a Councillors application and on every future occasion have to morally approve
Plans even though there are insufficient car-parking spaces. Surely not, colleagues;
13. WE SIMPLY CANNOT HAVE ONE LAW FOR A COUNCILLOR - AND A DIFFERENT ONE FOR NONCOUNCILLORS;
14. Sorry to strongly suggest refusal of this Application, but we have to remember we are charged
with integrity, fairness; equality, openness and transparency. By approving this application, we
would be "selling ourselves down the river"; and forever be accused of favouritism
15.

Are you prepared to take such a risk. I certainly am not.


LCC Highways did initially raise concern in regards to the loss of parking and the increase in
bedrooms from 3 to 4. Maximum parking standards found in Guidance Note 8 of the
Development Management DPD states that properties with 4 bedrooms should seek a
maximum of 3 parking spaces. The application is for an occupant with special care needs and
this has been awarded significant weight in the application’s determination. On visiting the

Page 20

site, I was satisfied that, if required, adequate parking could be provided in the form of the
driveway of the property, on-street parking, and a parking area adjacent to the junction with
Arthur Street.


The Council have received no response from any residents on the application.



The comments suggest preferential treatment towards the applicant because of the fact that
the applicant is a Councillor. I would like to assure members that the planning office
approach every application with the utmost professionalism, regardless of who the applicant
may be. Each application is considered on its own merits and in this case, the need to aid an
occupant with special care needs has been given significant weight.

The photographs provided are below:

Page 21

Page 22

